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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Jowa Association of School Boards
Des Moines, lowa

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statement of financial position of the Jowa Association of School Boards (the
Association) and its controlled entities as of June 30, 2011 and the related consolidated statements of activities and cash flows for the
year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Association’s management. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. The prior year summarized comparative information has
been derived from the Association’s 2010 financial statements and, in our report dated January 12, 2011; we expressed a qualified
opinion on those financial statements.

‘We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to in the first paragraph present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the Jowa Association of School Boards as of June 30, 2011 and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended,
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements taken as a whole. The supplementary informa-
tion included in schedules 1 through 9 is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial state-
ments. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and
other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion,
the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated April 6, 2012 on our consideration of the
Association’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards

and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.
B ook gl e
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IOWA ASSOCIATION OF SCHOOL BOARDS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
June 30, 2011
With Comparative Totals for 2010

2011 2010
Consolidated Comparative
ASSETS Totals Totals

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,432,724 $ 1,124,585

Assets held on behalf of others in an agency capacity:
Cash - lowa Schools Joint Investment Trust 1,523,545 2,276,957
Accrued interest receivable 655,069 1,750,747
Certificates of deposit 980,000 980,000
Repurchase agreements 222,258,000 126,050,000
U.S. government agency obligations 456,874,289 422,340,513
Demand deposits - 35,058,411
U.S. treasury bills - 2,999,644
Accounts receivable, net of allowance 2011: $131,508; 2010: $38,000 541,413 572,381
Accounts receivable - related parties - 118,299
Contributions receivable - 5,030
Office property and equipment, net 3,180,687 3,365,088
Other assets 5,000 6,828
Total assets $ 687,450,727 $ 596,648,483

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 228,513 $ 1,018,961
Accounts payable - related entities - 292,320
Deferred revenue 386,816 317,740
Interest rate swap 236,536 258,584
Accrued wages 185,847 340,041
Accrued vacation 64,177 42,062
Accrued interest 1,329 5,699
Accrued property taxes 103,332 103,200
$ 1,206,550 $ 2,378,607
Agency fund - held in trust for participants in ISJIT $ 681,465,829 $ 589,571,817
Accrued pension benefit liability $ 693,410 $ 795,684
Mortgage payable $ 1,107,990 $ 1,133,520
Total liabilities $ 684,473,779 $ 593,879,628
NET ASSETS

Unrestricted $ 2,966,654 $ 2,750,397
Temporarily restricted 10,294 18,458
Total net assets $ 2,976,948 $ 2,768,855
Total liabilities and net assets $ 687,450,727 $ 596,648,483

See Accompanying Independent Auditor's Report.




IOWA ASSOCIATION OF SCHOOL BOARDS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Year Ended June 30, 2011
With Comparative Totals for 2010

2011 2010
Temporarily Consolidated Comparative
Unrestricted Restricted Totals Totals
REVENUES

Memberships $ 1,208,584 $ - $ 1,208,584 $ 1,292,248
Publications, forms and materials 190,155 - 190,155 223,995
Convention and conferences 507,481 - 507,481 481,697
Consulting services 10,771 - 10,771 28,920
Professional services 272,033 - 272,033 300,072
Contributions 1,700 - 1,700 5,335
Administrative services 1,291,461 - 1,291,461 1,704,185
Online payment services 2,133,077 - 2,133,077 2,048,578
Sponsorships 261,423 - 261,423 242,437
Risk management and insurance program 526,446 - 526,446 507,489
Grants 3,395,246 - 3,395,246 3,428,090
Rental income 127,658 - 127,658 118,349

Net assets released from restrictions
satisfied by payments 8,164 (8,164) - -
Total revenues $ 9,934,199 % (8,164) $ 9,926,035 $ 10,381,395

EXPENSES

Salaries $ 2,341,316  $ - $ 2,341,316 $ 3,302,933
Payroll taxes 180,716 - 180,716 207,921
Retirement benefits 151,975 - 151,975 388,449
Program management 323,035 - 323,035 354,094
Staff development 4,010 - 4,010 8,647
Marketing 156,053 - 156,053 10,018
Travel 165,808 - 165,808 209,538
Building operations 244,155 - 244,155 305,366
Equipment and computers 82,071 - 82,071 114,730
Depreciation and amortization 194,591 - 194,591 383,468
Office supplies 47,963 - 47,963 80,317
Cartage and postage 15,472 - 15,472 32,575
Telephone 36,901 - 36,901 39,970
Investment advisory fees 206,768 - 206,768 231,546
Professional fees 1,396,101 - 1,396,101 2,501,719
Skills lowa expenses 2,905,491 - 2,905,491 2,742,821
Rating service 14,910 - 14,910 77,032
Sponsorship fees 292,418 - 292,418 437,228
Insurance 225,058 - 225,058 303,827
Printing 15,032 - 15,032 31,715
Reference materials 6,925 - 6,925 9,782
Dues 89,941 - 89,941 89,426
Conventions and conferences 319,436 - 319,436 294,771
Interest 98,625 - 98,625 105,640
Web hosting, registration and internet 49,040 - 49,040 44,888
Contributions 44,115 - 44,115 45,225
Assistance to members 5,040 - 5,040 13,060
Miscellaneous 139,660 - 139,660 43,037
Program banking fees 864,445 - 864,445 794,587
Total expenses $ 10,617,071  $ - $ 10,617,071 $ 13,204,330

(Continued)
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IOWA ASSOCIATION OF SCHOOL BOARDS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Year Ended June 30, 2011
With Comparative Totals for 2010

2011 2010
Temporarily Consolidated Comparative
Unrestricted Restricted Totals Totals
OTHER REVENUE (EXPENSE)

Interest income $ 6,183 $ - 3 6,183 $ 4,812
Other income 30,113 - 30,113 25,477
Investment income 1,304,545 - 1,304,545 1,568,785
Dividends issued to participants in ISJIT (572,274) - (572,274) (636,642)
Change in value of interest rate swap 22,048 - 22,048 (51,083)
Change in accrued pension liability 102,274 - 102,274 496,775
Loss on discontinued software - - - (66,708)
Gain on the sale of assets 1,289 - 1,289 -
Gain on the cost of issuance 4,951 - 4,951 17,337
Total other revenue $ 899,129 $ - 3 899,129 $ 1,358,753
Change in net assets $ 216,257  $ (8,164) $ 208,093 $  (1,464,182)

Net assets at beginning of year 2,750,397 18,458 2,768,855 4,233,037
Net assets at end of year $ 2,966,654  $ 10,294 $ 2976948 $ 2,768,855

See Accompanying Independent Auditor's Report.



IOWA ASSOCIATION OF SCHOOL BOARDS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended June 30, 2011
With Comparative Totals for 2010

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile the change in net assets
to net cash (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Swap liability
Change in assets and liabilities:

(Increase) decrease in assets:
Accounts receivable
Pledges receivable
Accrued interest receivable
Other assets

(Decrease) increase in liabilities:
Agency funds
Accounts payable
Accrued property taxes
Accrued interest
Accrued wages
Accrued vacation
Accrued pension liability
Deferred revenue

Net cash (used in) operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Amounts expended for computer software
Purchase of property and equipment
Net cash (used in) investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Issuance of units to ISCAP
Principal payments on notes payable
Net cash provided by financing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW
INFORMATION

Cash payments for interest

See Accompanying Independent Auditor's Report.

2011 2010
Consolidated Comparative
Totals Totals
$ 208,093 $ (1,464,182)

194,591 383,468
(22,048) 51,083
146,364 85,609
5,030 (5,030)
(8,628) (9,035)
1,828 64,504
- 996
(1,079,865) 713,033
132 (712)
4,258 8,798
(154,194) 340,041
22,115 (5,918)
(102,274) (496,775)
69,076 (329,546)
$ (715,522) $ (663,666)
$ - $ (4,800)
(10,190) (40,460)
$ (10,190) $ (45,260)
$ 1,059,381 $ 72,519
(25,530) (23,550)
$ 1,033,851 $ 48,969
$ 308,139 $ (659,957)
1,124,585 1,784,542
$ 1,432,724 $ 1,124,585
$ 102,995 $ 105,883




IOWA ASSOCIATION OF SCHOOL BOARDS
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. Nature of Organization, Reporting Entity, and Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of consolidation:

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the lowa Association of School
Boards (the Association) and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Local Government Services, Inc.
(LGS), along with the accounts of the lowa Schools Joint Investment Trust (ISJIT), lowa
Association of School Boards Foundation (ISBF) and lowa Schools Cash Anticipation
Program (ISCAP). The accounts of ISJIT, ISBF, and ISCAP are included in the consolidated
financial statements as the majority of the boards of directors of these organizations are
appointed by the board of directors of the Association, and the Association has an economic
interest in these organizations. All material inter-company accounts and transactions are
eliminated in consolidation.

Nature of organization:

The Association is a nonprofit organization operating to develop, strengthen, and correlate the
work of the school boards of the public schools in their efforts to promote the educational
interests of the state of lowa and to provide such services as will enhance these purposes.
Services offered to members by the Association include publications, research, consulting,
conferences, conventions, cash management, and risk management.

LGS is a for-profit, wholly-owned subsidiary of the Association. LGS operates in a support
capacity for the Association, which includes technology, infrastructure, and office operations.
LGS also seeks to create aggregation opportunities for members of the Association and other
educational and government institutions in lowa and other states, and operates the Associa-
tion’s sponsored programs. LGS is run for the benefit of the members of the Association, and
all net revenue returned to the Association is invested into member services. By creating new
business services and making existing business services more efficient, LGS preserves
resources for the Association’s members for student achievement and allows administrators to
focus on the core mission of public education. Business services include marketing and
administrative support for both nonprofits and intergovernmental organizations, PaySchools,
and other Association sponsored programs.

ISJIT was formed under a joint and cooperative undertaking under the provision of Chapter
28E, Code of lowa. ISJIT is exempt from federal and state income taxes under Internal
Revenue Code Section 115. The organization was formed to allow lowa schools to invest
monies pursuant to a joint investment agreement.

ISBF is a separate organization formed under 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and is
subject to federal income taxes only on any unrelated business income under the Internal
Revenue Code. ISBF was formed to serve the educational needs of lowa public school
boards. The organization’s primary programs were Lighthouse and Communities for Literate
lowa Kids (CLIK).

The Foundation is dependent on the lowa Association of School Boards (IASB) for financial
and operating support.



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. Nature of Organization, Reporting Entity, and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Nature of organization: (Continued)

Subsequent to year end, the Board of Directors of the Foundation decided to suspend
operation of the Foundation, subject to wrapping up current outstanding activities. The Board
of Directors of the Foundation will remain intact but be placed on “inactive status.” The
Foundation, with the assistance of IASB, will provide the services necessary to complete
existing grant and restricted contribution obligations. The IASB will provide the necessary
financial funding during the wind down period.

ISCAP was formed under a joint and cooperative undertaking under the provision of Chapter
28E, Code of lowa. ISCAP is exempt from federal and state income taxes under Internal
Revenue Code Section 115. The organization was organized to provide a method of funding
general fund deficits for school corporations participating in the ISCAP program. The
Administrative Fund of the ISCAP program collects fees to cover expenses for the
administration of the program.

Other related parties:

lowa Schools Employee Benefit Association (ISEBA) was formed under a joint and
cooperative undertaking under the provision of Chapter 28E, Code of lowa to provide
insurance to school employees. ISEBA currently offers medical, prescription drug, vision,
and dental insurance coverage to members. ISEBA is considered a related party to the
Association through common board members and management. ISEBA is not considered to
be part of the reporting entity as the Association does not have a majority of the voting
interest in ISEBA. The ISEBA Board consists of three Board members appointed by the
Association, three Board members appointed by the lowa State Education Association
(ISEA), one superintendent, one teacher, and one business manager or board secretary, each
of which is appointed jointly by the Association and the ISEA.

Classification of net assets:

Unrestricted — assets that are neither permanently restricted nor temporarily restricted by
donor-imposed stipulations. The Association’s governing board may earmark portions of
its unrestricted net assets as board-designated for various purposes.

Temporarily restricted — assets resulting from contributions and other inflows of assets
whose use by the Association is limited to donor-imposed stipulations that either expire by
passage of time or can be fulfilled by actions of the Association meeting the purpose of the
restriction.

Permanently restricted — assets resulting from contributions which are permanently
restricted by donors. Although such assets may not be expended, the investment income
earned on them is generally to be expended for a specific purpose. The Association
currently has no such assets.



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. Nature of Organization, Reporting Entity, and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
A summary of the organization’s significant accounting policies is as follows: (Continued)
Use of accounting estimates and assumptions:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

Cash and cash equivalents:

The Association considers all unrestricted deposits, savings and money market accounts to
be cash equivalents.

Assets held on behalf of others (Agency Funds):

The Association has presented on its statement of financial position certain assets
designated as “Assets held on behalf of others in an agency capacity.” These assets
represent assets being held on behalf of school corporations participating in ISJIT, which
includes cash equivalents (demand deposits and repurchase agreements), U.S. government
agency obligations, certificates of deposit, and commercial paper. These assets are
designated for the use and purpose of these school corporations and cannot be used in the
operations of the Association. Activity within these assets is netted for purposes of cash
flow disclosure due to the agency capacity in which they are held. Income earned on the
pooled investments is allocated to the respective participants.

Accounts receivable:

Accounts receivable are carried at original invoice amount less an estimate made for
doubtful receivables based on a review of all outstanding amounts on a monthly basis.
Management determines the allowance for doubtful accounts by identifying troubled
accounts and regularly evaluating individual customer receivables, considering a
customer’s financial condition and credit history. Accounts are considered past due 30
days past invoice date. Interest is not normally charged on past due accounts. Accounts
receivable are written off when deemed uncollectible. Recoveries of accounts receivable
previously written off are recorded when received.



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. Nature of Organization, Reporting Entity, and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
A summary of the organization’s significant accounting policies: (Continued)
Promises to give:

Contributions, which are defined as unconditional transfers of cash or other assets
including unconditional promises to give those items in the future, are measured at fair
value on the date received and recognized as revenue. The imposition of restrictions on
how a contribution is to be used does not delay recognition. However, the recognition of
conditional gifts is delayed until the conditions are met.

The Association distinguishes between contributions received with temporary restrictions
and those without donor-imposed restrictions. Contributions with donor-imposed
restrictions are reported as restricted support. Receipts of unconditional promises to give
with payments due in future periods are reported as restricted support unless it is clear that
the donor intended the gift to be used to support activities in the current period. Gifts of
long-lived assets received without donor-imposed restrictions are considered unrestricted
support.

Repurchase agreements:

ISJIT’s investment policy allows the organization to enter into collateralized perfected
repurchase agreements secured by the U.S. government or U.S. government agency
obligations. A repurchase agreement involves the sale of such securities to ISJIT with the
concurrent agreement of the seller to repurchase them at a specified time and price to yield
an agreed-upon rate of interest. The securities collateralizing the agreement are held by the
custodian and regularly verified and maintained daily in an amount equal to at least 102%
of the agreements. At June 30, 2011, the securities purchased under overnight agreements
to resell were collateralized by government and government agency securities in the name
of ISJIT with market values of approximately $226,703,909, held in an agency capacity.

Fair value of financial instruments:

Investments in certificates of deposit, U.S. government agency obligations, U.S. treasury
bills and commercial paper (including those held in an agency capacity) are recorded at
amortized cost which approximates the fair value of the financial instruments based upon
quoted market prices.

Based on the interest rates available to the Association, the carrying value of long-term
debt is a reasonable estimation of fair value.

Interest rate swap value is determined through a valuation model used by the holder which
uses interest rate factors from the market.

Property and equipment:

All acquisitions and betterments of property and equipment in excess of $3,000 for each
item for computer hardware and software and $1,500 for each item of other classes of
property and equipment are capitalized. Property and equipment are carried at cost.
Depreciation and amortization on property and equipment is provided using the straight-
line method over estimated lives ranging from 3 to 39 years. Maintenance and repairs that
do not improve or extend the useful lives of the respective assets are expensed.

-9-



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. Nature of Organization, Reporting Entity, and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
A summary of the organization’s significant accounting policies: (Continued)

Deferred revenue:
The Association records membership and other fees received in advance as deferred
revenue. These amounts are recognized as revenue during the period in which they are
earned.

Compensated absences:
Employees of the Association are entitled to paid vacations, depending on the job
classification, length of service, and other factors. A financial statement element called
“Accrued vacation” is recorded as a liability in the consolidated statement of financial
position to account for this benefit.

Derivative instruments and hedging activities:
The Association accounts for derivatives and hedging activities in accordance with
authoritative guidance issued by the FASB, which requires that all derivative instruments
be recorded in the statement of financial position at fair value.

Program services of the organization are as follows:

Advocacy services, which includes government relations, personnel and labor relations,
school finance and other advocacy programs.

Governance and leadership services, which includes board and leadership development,
executive search, board policy, and other governance and leadership programs.

Convention and conferences, which includes the Association’s annual convention and
other statewide or locally-held conferences organized by the Association.

Lighthouse, which includes the third phase of the research (involving multiple states) and
the scale-up in lowa.

Communities for Literate lowa Kids Project (CLIK), which includes early literacy
development programs.

Investment services, which includes ISJIT and other investment programs.

Administrative services, which includes ISCAP and other programs requiring
administrative services.

-10 -



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. Nature of Organization, Reporting Entity, and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
A summary of the organization’s significant accounting policies: Continued)
Program services of the organization are as follows: (Continued)

Online payment services, which includes PaySchools, Give2Schools and other online
payment programs.

Background check services, which includes the employee background check program.

Drug and alcohol testing services, which includes the lowa Drug & Alcohol Testing
Program (IDATP).

Assessment services, which includes Skills lowa, I-Growth, and other assessment
programs.

Income taxes:

The reporting entity is comprised of nonprofit, for-profit, and governmental corporations
as noted above and is exempt from federal and state taxes on related income. The
reporting entity is, however, subject to federal and state income taxes on any net unrelated
business income under the provisions of Section 511 of the Code. LGS, the wholly-owned
for-profit subsidiary of the Association, is subject to federal and state income taxes as
provided below.

Income taxes are provided for the tax effects of transactions reported in the financial
statements and consist of taxes currently due or refundable plus deferred taxes. Deferred
taxes result from the recognition of deferred tax liabilities and assets for expected future
income tax consequence events that have been recognized in the Association’s financial
statements which will either be taxable or deductible when the assets and liabilities are
recovered or settled. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on temporary
differences between the financial carrying amounts and the tax basis of assets and
liabilities using enacted tax rates in effect in the years in which the temporary differences
are expected to reverse. Management periodically reviews the value of deferred tax assets
to determine the future realization of the asset. If management determines the asset will
not be realized a valuation allowance is applied to the asset.

Management believes it has no material uncertain tax positions and, accordingly, it will not
recognize any liability for unrecognized tax benefits. Any interest and penalty payments
would be recorded in separate accounts in the operating expenses. The Association’s
remaining open years subject to examination include the years ended June 30, 2008
through 2011.

-11 -



Note 2.

Note 3.

Note 4.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Significant Estimates

A liability is recorded for the value of an interest rate swap. This is an estimate of the swap’s
fair value based on benchmark levels of recent swaps entered into on similar terms and it is
reasonably possible that the estimate may change significantly in the near term.

The deferred tax asset valuation allowance is based upon management’s estimate of the future
realization of the deferred tax asset. It is reasonably possible that the valuation allowance may
change significantly in the near term.

Pension plan contributions are made and the actuarial present value of accumulated plan benefits
are reported based on certain assumptions pertaining to interest rates, inflation rates and
employee demographics, all of which are subject to change. Due to uncertainties inherent in the
estimates and assumptions process, it is at least reasonably possible that changes in these
estimates and assumptions in the near term would be material to the financial statements.

Concentrations

The Association routinely has cash balances at financial institutions in excess of FDIC insured
limits. The Association has not experienced any losses as a result of this.

Property and Equipment

At June 30, 2011 the cost and accumulated depreciation of property and equipment were as
follows:

Land $ 505,638
Buildings and improvements 2,980,093
Office equipment 126,576
Computer equipment 428,576
Computer software 1,075,650

$5,116,533
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 1,935,846

$3,180,687

-12-



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 5. Income Taxes

LGS accounts for income taxes in accordance with authoritative guidance issued by the FASB,
whereby deferred taxes are provided on temporary differences arising from assets and liabilities
whose basis is different for financial reporting and income tax purposes. Deferred taxes are
attributable to the effects of the following items:

e Differences in calculating depreciation on fixed assets
e Tax loss carryforwards

Deferred taxes consist of the following at June 30, 2011:

Deferred tax assets $ 1,643,538
Valuation allowance (1,643,538)
3;

Subsequent to June 30, 2009, LGS’s management significantly changed programs managed by
LGS. These changes significantly decreased current and future revenues which affected the
future realization of the deferred tax asset. Based on the factors in place, the Board decided to
apply a 100% valuation allowance to the deferred tax asset for periods going forward.

As of June 30, 2011, LGS had a net operating loss carryforward of $3,939,819 that can be
deducted against future taxable income. This tax carryforward amount will expire as follows:

June 30,
2026 $ 112,421
2027 1,286,839
2028 939,673
2029 1,119,306
2030 481,580
$3,939.819
Note 6. Agency Funds
Agency fund activity for the year ended June 30, 2011 was as follows:
ISJIT
Balance at beginning of year $ 589,571,817
Revenue:
Units sold 2,057,400,286
Units redeemed (1,965,253,474)
Dividends issued 572,274
Eliminations (825,074)
Balance at end of year $ 681,465,829

-13-



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 7. Retirement Plans

Pension Plan:

The Association sponsors a defined benefit pension plan (the Plan) covering substantially all
of its employees. Benefits under the Plan were based on an employee’s years of service and
compensation during the years immediately preceding retirement. The Plan’s assets include
equity, debt, and real estate pooled separate accounts. The Association’s policy is to fund

pension cost accrued.

The following table summarized the benefit obligations, the fair value of Plan assets, and the

funded status for the year ended June 30, 2011

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of period

Actual return of plan assets
Employer contributions
Benefits paid

Fair value of plan assets at end of period

Benefit obligation at beginning of period
Interest cost

Actuarial (gain)

Benefits paid

Projected/accumulated benefit obligation at end of period

Plan assets in deficit of projected/accumulated benefit obligation

Changes to unrestricted net assets are as follows:

Plan assets in deficit of projected/accumulated
benefit obligation at June 30, 2010

Change in accrued pension liability shown in the

statement of activities:

Components of net periodic benefit cost:
Interest cost
Expected return of plan assets
Amortization of net loss
Net periodic benefit cost

Other changes:
Net (gain)/loss
Amortization of net gain/(loss)
Total other changes
Total change

Plan assets in deficit of projected/accumulated
benefit obligation at June 30, 2011

-14 -

$ 163,038
(133,049)
17,335

$ 47324

$ (132,263)
(17.335)
$ (149,508)

$ (102,274)

$2,449,801
275,164

(160,510)

$2,564,455
$3,245,485

163,038
9,852

(160,510)
$3,257,865

$ (693.410)

$ 795,684

(102,274)

$ 693410



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 7. Retirement Plans (Continued)
Pension Plan: (Continued)

Plan assets allocations were comprised of the following investment classifications at June 30,

2011:
Equity securities 14%
Fixed income securities 18
Debt securities 68
100%

The Association’s investment objective with respect to the pension plan is to produce
sufficient current income and capital growth through a portfolio of equity and fixed income
investments that together with appropriate employer contributions, is sufficient to provide for
the pension benefit obligations. Pension assets are managed by outside investment managers
in accordance with the investment policies and guidelines established by the pension trustees,
and are diversified by investment style, asset category, sector, industry, issuer, and maturity.

The expected long-term return on plan assets was based upon historical and future expected
returns of multiple asset classes that were analyzed to develop a risk-free real rate of return
and risk premiums for each asset class. The overall rate for each asset class was developed by
combining a long-term inflation component, the risk-free real rate of return, and the
associated risk premium. A weighted average rate was developed based on those overall rates
and the target asset allocation.

The following are actuarial assumptions used by the Plan to develop the projected benefit
obligations for the period ended June 30, 2011:

Discount rate 5.25%
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets 6.75%

The benefits expected to be paid in each year from 2012 to 2016 are $170,000, $160,000,
$160,000, $290,000, and $310,000, respectively. The aggregate benefits expected to be paid
in the five years from 2017 to 2021 are $1,330,000. The expected benefits to be paid are
based on the same assumptions used to measure the Association’s benefit obligation at

June 30, 2010 and include estimated employee service. The Association expects to make
contributions of $161,696 during the upcoming year; comprised of $97,000 for 2010
contributions and $64,696 for 2011 contributions.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 7. Retirement Plans (Continued)
Pension Plan: (Continued)

Amounts in unrestricted net assets expected to be recognized as components of net periodic
benefit cost over the next fiscal year are as follows:

Interest cost:

On $3,257,865 projected benefit obligation $ 179,183
Adjustment for expected benefit distributions of $170,000 (4,675)
Interest cost $ 174,508
Expected return on plan assets:
On $2,564,455 market value of assets at measurement date $ (141,045)
Adjustment for expected employer contributions of $120,618 (2,349)
Adjustment for expected benefit distributions of $170,000 4,675
Adjustment for estimated administrative expenses 19,303
Expected return on plan assets $ (119.416)
Amortization of net (gain) loss:
Prior year total net (gain) loss $484,549
Amount recognized in net periodic benefit cost (17,335)
Actuarial (gain) loss 9,852
Actual return on assets (gain) loss (275,164)
Expected return on assets gain (loss) 133,049
Total current year net (gain) loss $ 334,951
10% of greater of asset value or benefit obligation
(after changes, if applicable) 325,787
(Gain) loss to recognize $ 9164
Average future service 897
Amortization of net (gain) loss $ 1022

Effective August 31, 2006, all accrued benefits under the Plan have been frozen at their
current amount. No future accrual service will be credited, and no future changes in compen-
sation will be taken into account in the determination of a participant’s accrued benefit. The
Association amended the Plan to terminate effective August 1, 2008. During the prior fiscal
year, the Board voted to rescind the Plan termination and the Plan will remain frozen until
further action is taken by the Board.

The value of the liabilities is calculated using a measurement date of June 30, 2011, and the
Plan assets are valued at their fair value at June 30, 2011.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 7. Retirement Plans (Continued)
Pension Plan: (Continued)
401(k) Plan:

The Association also has a 401(k) plan which covers substantially all employees. Under the
terms of the plan, employer-matching contributions are equal to 100% of the employee
contributions, up to 2% of eligible wages after six months of employment. The Association
also made discretionary contributions ranging from 5% to 13% (based on the employee’s
allocation group) for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2011. The contributions to the plan for
the year ended June 30, 2011 were as follows:

IASB $ 97,388
LGS 54,587
Total $148,606

Subsequent to year end, the employer-matching contributions and discretionary contributions
have been suspended.

Note 8. Mortgage Payable

LGS has a single advance variable rate term note in the amount of $1,220,000 dated April 13,
2006, in which the proceeds were used to purchase a building. Interest on the note is equal to
2.00% plus the one-month LIBOR rate. Interest is calculated and paid on a monthly basis. The
principal payments are being amortized over a 25-year period with the loan maturing in ten
years.

At June 30, 2011, the balance of the single advance term note was $1,107,990 with an interest
rate of 2.19%. The single advance term note is collateralized by the building and rent. Net book
value of the land and building as of June 30, 2011 was $3,107,453.

The bank has provided LGS a permanent waiver on violation for 2010 and following years
regarding the rental agreement with ISEBA, which is now an administrative services agreement.
A waiver was received from the bank for the 2011 violations.

Mortgage payable maturities of the Association for the next five years and thereafter are as

follows:

Years Amount

2012 $ 27,530

2013 29,660

2014 31,970

2015 34,460

2016 984,370
$1.,107,990

LGS has pledged a money market account held by the bank as part of the collateral on the note.
The pledged money market account balance as of June 30, 2011 was $92,801.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 9. On-Balance Sheet Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities
Derivative Financial Instruments:

LGS has a stand-alone derivative financial instrument in the form of an interest rate swap
agreement, which derives its value from underlying interest rates. This transaction involves
both credit and market risk. The notional amount is an amount on which calculations,
payments, and the value of the derivative is based. Notional amounts do not represent direct
credit exposures. Direct credit exposure is limited to the net difference between the calculated
amount to be received and paid, if any. Such difference, which represents the fair value of the
derivative instruments, is reflected on the Association’s financial statements as a derivative
liability.

The Association is exposed to credit related losses in the event of nonperformance by the
counter-party to this agreement; however, risk is mitigated by the fact that the counter-party is
a creditor to the Association. The Association controls the credit risk of its financial contracts
through credit approvals, limits and monitoring procedures, and does not expect the counter-
party to fail its obligations. The Association deals only with one primary dealer.

Derivative instruments are generally negotiated over-the-counter contracts generally entered
into between two counter-parties that negotiate specific terms, including the underlying
instrument, amount, exercise prices, and maturity.

Derivative Financial Instruments — Description:

The Association has entered into an interest rate swap agreement with one counter-party to
hedge the interest payments of the mortgage payable. The swap is pay variable, receive fixed.
The objective of the interest rate swap agreement is to fix the interest rates on the mortgage
payable at a lower rate than issuing fixed rate debt.

Risk Management Policies — Hedging Instruments:

The Association has entered into an interest rate swap agreement to effectively manage the
risk of rising interest rates on the mortgage payable. On an ongoing basis, management
monitors the monthly interest rate resets of the variable rate mortgage payable; receives, at
least monthly, valuation statements of the swap agreement; records the fair value adjustments
of the swap in the accounting records; and internally assesses the effectiveness of the swap
agreement each month and, if any material changes become evident, informs the Board of
Directors of those facts and circumstances.

Interest Rate Risk Management — Fair Value of Hedging Instruments:

The Association has variable rate debt. Management believes that it is prudent to limit the
variability in the fair value portion of its variable-rate debt by entering into this interest rate
swap. It is the Association’s objective to fix interest rates on the variable rate debt in a way
that was more cost effective than natural fixed rate debt to protect against the risk of rising
interest rates in the long term.

To meet this objective, the Association utilizes an interest rate swap as an asset/liability
management strategy to hedge the change in value of the debt due to changes in expected
interest rate assumptions. The interest rate swap agreement is a contract to make a series of
variable rate payments in exchange for receiving a series of fixed rate payments. The
Association believes that the hedge remains effective at June 30, 2011.
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Note 9. On-Balance Sheet Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities (Continued)

At June 30, 2011, the information pertaining to the outstanding interest rate swap agreement
used to hedge variable-rate debt is as follows:

Swap #21257A
Notional amount $ 1,401,070
Weighted average pay rate 0.30%
Weighted average receive rate 5.62%
Weighted average maturity in years 4.8
Unrealized (loss) relating to

interest rate swap $ (236,536)

The above agreement provides for the Association to make payments at a variable rate of
0.30% in exchange for receiving payments at a fixed rate of 5.62%. At June 30, 2011, the
unrealized (loss) related to use of interest rate swaps was recorded as a derivative liability in
accordance with authoritative guidance issued by the FASB.

Note 10. Fair Value Measurements

Fair value of the assets and liabilities measured on a recurring basis at June 30, 2011 are as
follows:

Quoted Prices

in Active Significant
Markets for Other Significant
Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs
Fair Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Assets (held in an
agency capacity):
Certificates of deposit $ 980,000 $ - $ 980,000 $ -
U.S. government agency
agency obligations 456,874,289 - 456,874,289 -
Repurchase agreements 222,258,000 - 222,258,000 -
Pension plan assets 2,564,455 - 2,252,249 312,206
Liabilities:
Interest rate swap 236,536 - - 236,536
Net fair value $682,440,208 $ - $682,364,538 $ 75670

Authoritative guidance issued by the FASB establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the
inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy consists of three broad
levels: Level 1 inputs consist of unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets
and have the highest priority, Level 2 inputs consist of quoted prices of similar assets or
liabilities in active markets or quoted prices for identical or similar assets in inactive markets,
and Level 3 inputs have the lowest priority. When available, the Association measures fair value
using Level 1 inputs because they generally provide the more reliable evidence of fair value.

-19-



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 10. Fair Value Measurements (Continued)
Level 1 Fair Value Measurements

The fair value measurements are based on quoted market values. The Association holds no such
investments at June 30, 2011.

Level 2 Fair Value Measurements

The fair value is based on quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted
prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets, inputs other than quoted
prices that are observable for the asset or liability, and inputs that are derived principally from
observable market data.

Level 3 Fair Value Measurements

The interest rate swap is not actively traded and significant other observable inputs are not
available. The fair value of interest rate swap is valued by the holder of the swap using a
proprietary pricing/valuation model to compute the fair value.

The U.S. Property Separate Account is not actively traded and significant other observable inputs
are not available. Thus, the fair value of the U.S. Property Separate account is determined using
various valuation approaches which consist of: 1) annual appraisals by certified appraisers and
then updated daily based on changes in factors such as occupancy levels, lease rates, overall
market conditions and capital improvements; 2) based on the basis of estimated market interest
rates for loans of comparable quality and maturity and giving consideration to the value of the
underlying collateral; 3) quoted market prices of the fund or its underlying assets; 4) discounting
the future contacts cash flows to the present value using interest rates and anticipated returns a
market participant would incur with similar risk and terms.

The following table provides further details of the Level 3 fair value measurements.

Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (level 3):

Pension Plan Assets

Interest Rate (U.S. Property
Swap Liability Separate Account)
June 30, 2011
Beginning balance $ 258,584 $ 258,644
Investment return - 53,562
Change in value (22,048) -
Ending balance $ 236,536 12,2

Changes in net assets for the year ended June 30, 2011 for the interest rate swap liability are
reported as change in value of interest rate swap on the statement of activities. Changes in net
assets for the year ended June 30, 2011 for the pension plan assets (U.S. property) are included in
the change in accrued pension liability on the statement of activities.
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Note 11. Net Assets
Net assets consisted of the following as of June 30, 2011:

Unrestricted net assets:

Undesignated $2,021,794
Board designated:
Loss Reserve-ISCAP 781,570
Insurance Division Stabilization Reserve 72,980
lowa Council of School Board Attorneys 55,341
Legal Service Fund 34,969
Total $2,966.654

Temporarily restricted net assets:
Restricted due to purpose:

CLIK $ 10,294
Total $ 10,294

Subsequent to year end, the contributor redirected the CLIK-General restriction to be used for
education sessions at the IASB 2012 Convention.

Note 12. Related Entity Transactions
ISEBA:

LGS has an agreement with ISEBA to provide administrative services at a rate of .50% of
medical premiums, with a new third party administering the ISEBA program. ISEBA is
considered a related party through common board membership. During the year ended
June 30, 2011, LGS received $266,124 for administrative services for the ISEBA program.
LGS paid commissions to IASB and ISEA in the amount of $51,215 to each entity. The
amounts paid to IASB have been eliminated in the financial statements.

Note 13. Contingencies

The Association created the Insurance Division under the Association to sponsor insurance plans
for its members. Premium payments on the plans are made to the respective insurance carriers
by the members participating in the program. The Association is reimbursed for various admin-
istrative and program services from this fund. Section 12.2 of Charter of the Insurance Division
states “upon termination of the Insurance Division by the Association’s Board, the Executive
Committee, subject to the approval of the Association’s Board, shall pay all obligations of the
Division and distribute any remaining surplus to the Members as provided in Section 6.2, in such
manner as they determine will carry out the purpose of the Division; or the Insurance Committee
subject to the approval of the Association’s Board may transfer the Insurance Programs and the
remaining surplus, or any portion thereof, to the directors of any fund established for a substan-
tially similar purpose, provided that the payment upon dissolution shall be to or for the benefits
of the Members and not the Insurance Committee, other private persons, or the Association,
except for the payment of expenses and compensation pursuant to Section 6.1 of this Charter.”
The Association’s Board has reserved the right to amend the Insurance Division charter which
would also include the termination clause in the charter. In addition, any liability would be
contingent upon the termination of the Insurance Division in its current form; however, the
Association does not expect to terminate the Insurance Division in the near term. Pursuant to
Section 6.2, the Insurance Committee is authorized to allocate monies of the Insurance Division
for the operation of the Association. A stabilization reserve amount has been classified as a
designated, unrestricted net asset by the Association’s Board of Directors; the amount at June 30,
2011 was $72,980.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Contingencies (Continued)

The Association also established a Legal Service Fund (LSF) which is available to members of
the Association who elect to pay membership dues to the LSF. The funds are used to provide
financial assistance and legal service to members involved in cases determined by the LSF to be
of significant statewide importance. Article X1 of the LSF Rules and Regulations states that,
upon termination of the LSF, any remaining funds shall be distributed on a pro-rata basis to the
LSF members. The amount in the LSF is not recorded as a liability in the Association’s financial
statements as the Association’s Board has reserved the right to amend the LSF Rules and
Regulations which would also include the termination clause. In addition, the liability would be
contingent upon the termination of the LSF in its current form; however, the Association does
not expect to terminate the LSF in the near term. The balance in the LSF at June 30, 2011 was
$34,969. The LSF amount has been classified under unrestricted net assets as designated by the
Association’s Board of Directors for the Legal Service Fund.

ISCAP created a loss reserve to reduce future costs of issuance by strategies including reduced
insurance costs. The balance designated by management for the loss reserve for the year ended
June 30, 2011 was $781,570. For the year ended June 30, 2011, $750,000 was used to provide
collateral on the warrants issued to the school districts.

The Association has an unused letter of credit with a bank in the amount of $263,739. This letter
of credit was established to protect the defined benefit plan from deficiencies that might arise as
a result of payment of a single lump sum retirement benefit to a past employee. The expiration
date of the letter is September 30, 2012. The bank has required the Association to establish an
account with the bank to be used as collateral in the amount of $131,928.

Commitments

Effective August 1, 2009, the Association was obligated to pay the former Executive Director
$181,199 under a ‘Hold Harmless Agreement’ in regard to the pension plan freeze which took
place in 2006. The Association is making semi-annual payments in the amount of $36,000 plus
interest for each payment until September 2014. The remaining balance as of June 30, 2011 was
$144,000.

Expenses

Expenses incurred during the years ended June 30, 2011 by their natural classification were as

follows:
June 30, 2011
Program Supporting

Services Services Total

Salaries, wages, and benefits $ 2,054,364 $844,701  $ 2,899,065
Building operations 1,840 242,315 244,155
Depreciation and amortization 91,182 103,699 194,881
Professional fees, sponsorships,

and marketing 1,801,895 587,390 2,389,285
Skills lowa expenses 2,614,942 290,549 2,905,491
Program banking fees 864,445 - 864,445
Conventions and conferences 319,310 126 319,436
Travel 148,355 17,453 165,808
Interest - 98,625 98,625
Other 349,122 186,758 535,880

$ 8245455 $2371.616 $10.617.071
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Note 16. Comparative Totals

The amounts shown for 2010 in the accompanying financial statements are included to provide a
basis for comparison with 2011 and are not intended to present all information necessary for a
fair presentation in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Note 17. Restatement

The Association has included the activity of the lowa Council of School Board Attorneys
“ICSBA” (a special committee of the Association) in the statement of financial position and
statement of activities for the Association for the year ended June 30, 2011 and, therefore, the
June 30, 2010 statement of financial position and statement of activities were restated to reflect
the presentation. ICSBA was previously shown on the statement of financial position as an
agency fund. Accordingly, the Association’s beginning net assets for the year ended June 30,
2010 have been increased by $32,997 to reflect this change. For the years ended June 30, 2011
and 2010, this change increases the change in net assets by $1,612 and decreases the change in
net assets by $939, respectively.

Note 18. Reclassifications

Certain 2010 amounts on the financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the 2011
classifications. Such reclassifications have no effect on the reported change in total net assets.

Note 19. Subsequent Events
Subsequent to year end, the Skills lowa grant is no longer administered by IASB. The 2010-
2011 Skills lowa grant was administered by IASB through September 30, 2011. The grant
provided overhead revenue of approximately $250,000.

Management has evaluated subsequent events through April 6, 2012, the date the audit report
was available to be issued.
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IOWA ASSOCIATION OF SCHOOL BOARDS

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
June 30, 2011

With Comparative Totals for 2010

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Assets held on behalf of others in an agency capacity:
Cash - lowa Schools Joint Investment Trust
Accrued interest receivable
Certificates of deposit
Repurchase agreements
U.S. government agency obligations
Demand deposits
U.S. treasury bills
Accounts receivable, net of allowance 2011: $131,508; 2010: $38,000
Accounts receivable - related entities
Contributions receivable
Office property and equipment, net
Other assets

Total assets
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accounts payable - related entities
Due to IASB
Due to LGS
Deferred revenue
Interest rate swap
Accrued wages
Accrued vacation

Accrued interest
Accrued property taxes

Agency fund - held in trust for participants in ISJIT
Accrued pension benefit liability
Mortgage payable

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS AND ACCUMULATED (DEFICIT)
Unrestricted
Accumulated (deficit)
Temporarily restricted

Total net assets and accumulated (deficit)

Total liabilities, net assets, and accumulated (deficit]

See Accompanying Independent Auditor's Report.
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Schedule 1
lowa
Association of lowa Association lowa Schools lowa Schools 2011 2010
School Boards of School Boards  Joint Investment Cash Anticipation Consolidating Comparative
& Subsidiary Foundation Trust Program Eliminations Totals Totals
1,356,126 $ 72,327 % 4271 $ 825,074 % (825,074) $ 1,432,724  $ 1,124,585
- - 1,523,545 - - 1,523,545 2,276,957
- - 655,069 - - 655,069 1,750,747
- - 980,000 - - 980,000 980,000
- - 222,258,000 - - 222,258,000 126,050,000
- - 456,874,289 - - 456,874,289 422,340,513
- - - - - - 35,058,411
- - - - - - 2,999,644
531,708 - 8,996 709 - 541,413 572,381
77,080 - - - (77,080) - 118,299
- - - - - - 5,030
3,180,687 - - - - 3,180,687 3,365,088
5,000 - - - - 5,000 6,828
5,150,601 $ 72,327 $ 682,304,170 $ 825,783 $ (902,154) $ 687,450,727 $ 596,648,483
232,440 $ -3 21,516 $ - 3 (25,443) $ 228,513 % 1,018,961
- - - - - - 292,320
- 15,815 - 30,471 (46,286) - -
- 5,351 - - (5,351) - -
336,816 50,000 - - - 386,816 317,740
236,536 - - - - 236,536 258,584
185,847 - - - - 185,847 340,041
64,177 - - - - 64,177 42,062
1,329 - - - - 1,329 5,699
103,332 - - - - 103,332 103,200
1,160,477 $ 71,166 $ 21,516 $ 30,471 $ (77,080) $ 1,206,550 $ 2,378,607
- $ - $ 682,290,903 $ - 3 (825,074) $ 681,465,829 $ 589,571,817
693,410 $ - $ -$ - $ - $ 693,410 $ 795,684
1,107,990 $ - $ -3 - 3 - $ 1,107,990 $ 1,133,520
2,961,877 $ 71,166 $ 682,312,419 $ 30,471 $ (902,154) $ 684,473,779 $ 593,879,628
6,531,140 $ (9,133) $ (8,249) $ 795,312 % -3 7,309,070 $ 7,208,444
(4,342,416) - - - - (4,342,416) (4,458,047)
- 10,294 - - - 10,294 18,458
2,188,724 $ 1,161 $ (8,249) $ 795,312 $ - $ 2,976,948 $ 2,768,855
5,150,601 $ 72,327 $ 682,304,170 $ 825,783 $ (902,154) $ 687,450,727 $ 596,648,483




REVENUES
Memberships
Publications, forms and materials
Convention and conferences
Consulting services
Professional services
Contributions
Administrative services
Online payment services
Sponsorships
Risk management and insurance program
Grants
Rental income
Net assets released from restrictions

satisfied by payments

Total revenues

EXPENSES
Salaries
Payroll taxes
Retirement benefits
Program management
Staff development
Marketing
Travel
Building operations
Equipment and computers
Depreciation and amortization
Office supplies
Cartage and postage
Telephone
Investment advisory fees
Professional fees
Skills lowa expenses
Rating service
Sponsorship fees
Insurance
Printing
Reference materials
Dues
Conventions and conferences
Interest
Web hosting, registration and internet
Contributions
Assistance to members
Miscellaneous
Program banking fees

Total expenses

OTHER REVENUE (EXPENSE)
Interest income
Other income
Investment income
Dividends issued to participants in ISJIT
Change in value of interest rate swap
Change in accrued pension liability
Loss on discontinued software
Gain on the sale of assets
Gain on cost of issuance

Total other revenue
Change in net assets
Net assets (deficit) at beginning of year

Net assets at end of year

See Accompanying Independent Auditor's Report.

IOWA ASSOCIATION OF SCHOOL BOARDS

Schedule 2
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Year Ended June 30, 2011
With Comparative Totals for 2010
Unrestricted Temporarily Restricted
lowa Association lowa Association of lowa Schools lowa Schools lowa Association of lowa Association of 2011 2010
of School Boards School Boards Joint Investment Cash Anticipation School Boards Consolidating Comparative
& Subsidiary Foundation Trust Program Totals Foundation Totals Eliminations Totals Totals
$ 1,208584  $ - 3 - -3 1,208,584 - 3 -3 - 8 -3 1,208,584 $ 1,292,248
190,155 - - - 190,155 - - - - 190,155 223,995
507,481 - - - 507,481 - - - - 507,481 481,697
12,771 - - - 12,771 - - - (2,000) 10,771 28,920
272,033 - - - 272,033 - - - - 272,033 300,072
- 1,700 - - 1,700 - - - - 1,700 5,335
1,402,713 - - 44,020 1,446,733 - - - (155,272) 1,291,461 1,704,185
2,133,077 - - - 2,133,077 - - - - 2,133,077 2,048,578
319,843 - - - 319,843 - - - (58,420) 261,423 242,437
526,446 - - - 526,446 - - - - 526,446 507,489
3,345,246 50,000 - - 3,395,246 - - - - 3,395,246 3,428,090
127,658 - - - 127,658 - - - - 127,658 118,349
1,134 7,030 - - 8,164 (1,134) (7,030) (8,164) - - -
$ 10,047,141 $ 58,730 $ - 44,020 $ 10,149,891 (1,134) $ (7,030) $ (8,164) $ (215692) $ 9,926,035 $ 10,381,395
$ 2,341,316 $ -3 - - 8 2,341,316 - 8 - 3 - 8 -3 2,341,316 $ 3,302,933
180,716 - - - 180,716 - - - - 180,716 207,921
151,975 - - - 151,975 - - - - 151,975 388,449
- 13,237 323,035 - 336,272 - - - (13,237) 323,035 354,094
4,010 - - - 4,010 - - - - 4,010 8,647
12,017 - 144,036 - 156,053 - - - - 156,053 10,018
165,546 147 - 115 165,808 - - - - 165,808 209,538
244,155 - - - 244,155 - - - - 244,155 305,366
82,071 - - - 82,071 - - - - 82,071 114,730
194,591 - - - 194,591 - - - - 194,591 383,468
46,375 1,298 - 290 47,963 - - - - 47,963 80,317
15,330 142 - - 15,472 - - - - 15,472 32,575
36,864 37 - - 36,901 - - - - 36,901 39,970
- - 206,768 - 206,768 - - - - 206,768 231,546
1,453,426 3,900 52,441 30,369 1,540,136 - - - (144,035) 1,396,101 2,501,719
2,905,491 - - - 2,905,491 - - - - 2,905,491 2,742,821
- - 14,910 - 14,910 - - - - 14,910 77,032
292,418 - 58,420 - 350,838 - - - (58,420) 292,418 437,228
221,638 1,710 - 1,710 225,058 - - - - 225,058 303,827
14,820 212 - - 15,032 - - - - 15,032 31,715
6,925 - - - 6,925 - - - - 6,925 9,782
89,931 10 - - 89,941 - - - - 89,941 89,426
319,436 - - - 319,436 - - - - 319,436 294,771
98,625 - - - 98,625 - - - - 98,625 105,640
49,040 - - - 49,040 - - - - 49,040 44,888
- 44,115 - - 44,115 - - - - 44,115 45,225
5,040 - - - 5,040 - - - - 5,040 13,060
129,097 - 10,417 146 139,660 - - - - 139,660 43,037
864,445 - - - 864,445 - - - - 864,445 794,587
$ 9,925,298 $ 64,808 $ 810,027 32,630 $ 10,832,763 -3 - 8 - 3 (215,692) $ 10,617,071 $ 13,204,330
$ 5,188 $ 62 $ - 933 §$ 6,183 - % - $ -3 - $ 6,183 $ 4,812
- - 30,113 - 30,113 - - - - 30,113 25,477
- - 1,304,545 - 1,304,545 - - - - 1,304,545 1,568,785
- - (572,274) - (572,274) - - - - (572,274) (636,642)
22,048 - - - 22,048 - - - - 22,048 (51,083)
102,274 - - - 102,274 - - - - 102,274 496,775
- - - - - - - - - - (66,708)
1,289 - - - 1,289 - - - - 1,289 -
- - - 4,951 4,951 - - - - 4,951 17,337
$ 130,799 $ 62 $ 762,384 5884 $ 899,129 - $ - $ - $ - $ 899,129 $ 1,358,753
$ 252,642  $ (6,016) $ (47,643) 17274 $ 216,257 (1,134) $ (7,030) $ (8,164) $ -8 208,093 $ (1,464,182)
1,936,082 (3,117) 39,394 778,038 2,750,397 1,134 17,324 18,458 - 2,768,855 4,233,037
$ 2,188,724 $ (9,133) $ (8,249) 795312 $ 2,966,654 - $ 10294 $ 10294 $ - $ 2,976,948 3% 2,768,855
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IOWA ASSOCIATION OF SCHOOL BOARDS

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended June 30, 2011

With Comparative Totals for 2010

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile the change in net assets
to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Swap liability
Change in assets and liabilities:

(Increase) decrease in assets:
Accounts receivable
Pledges receivable
Accrued interest receivable
Other assets

Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Agency funds
Due to IASB
Due to LGS
Accounts payable
Accrued property taxes
Accrued interest
Accrued wages
Accrued vacation
Accrued pension liability
Deferred revenue

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Amounts expended for computer software
Purchase of property and equipment
Net cash (used in) investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Issuance of units to ISCAP
Principal payments on notes payable
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash payments for interest

See Accompanying Independent Auditor's Report.
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Schedule 3
lowa
Association of lowa Association lowa Schools lowa Schools 2011 2010
School Boards of School Boards Joint Investment Cash Anticipation Consolidating Comparative
& Subsidiary Foundation Trust Program Eliminations Totals Totals
$ 251,508 $ (13,046) $ (47,643) $ 17,274  $ - 3 208,093 $ (1,464,182)
194,591 - - - - 194,591 383,468
(22,048) - - - - (22,048) 51,083
764,195 - (7,891) (699) (609,241) 146,364 85,609
- 5,030 - - - 5,030 (5,030)
(8,628) - - - - (8,628) (9,035)
1,828 - - - - 1,828 64,504
- - (1,059,381) - 1,059,381 - 996
- (2,959) (2,589) (394,507) 400,055 - -
- (5,774) - (203,412) 209,186 - -
(594,863) (4,733) (2,232) (478,037) - (1,079,865) 713,033
132 - - - - 132 (712)
4,258 - - - - 4,258 8,798
(154,194) - - - - (154,194) 340,041
22,115 - - - - 22,115 (5,918)
(102,274) - - - - (102,274) (496,775)
19,076 50,000 - - - 69,076 (329,546)
$ 375,696 $ 28518 $ (1,119,736) $ (1,059,381) $ 1,059,381 $ (715,522) $ (663,666)
$ - $ - $ - 8 - - - % (4,800)
(10,190) - - - - (10,190) (40,460)
$ (10,190) $ - $ - 8 - 3 - $ (10,190) $ (45,260)
$ - $ - % 1,059,381 $ - $ - % 1,059,381 $ 72,519
(25,530) - - - - (25,530) (23,550)
$ (25530) $ - 8 1,059,381 $ - 3 - 3 1,033,851 $ 48,969
$ 339,976 $ 28518 $ (60,355) $ (1,059,381) $ 1,059,381 $ 308,139 % (659,957)
1,016,150 43,809 64,626 1,884,455 (1,884,455) 1,124,585 1,784,542
$ 1,356,126 $ 72,327  $ 4271  $ 825,074 $ (825,074) $ 1,432,724  $ 1,124,585
$ 102,995 $ - $ - $ - 3 - $ 102,995 $ 105,883




IOWA ASSOCIATION OF SCHOOL BOARDS

Schedule 4
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION FOR
IOWA ASSOCIATION OF SCHOOL BOARDS & SUBSIDIARY
June 30, 2011
With Comparative Totals for 2010
lowa Local 2011 2010
Association of Government Consolidating Comparative
ASSETS School Boards Services, Inc. Eliminations Totals Totals
Cash and cash equivalents $ 478,760 $ 877,366 $ - 8 1,356,126 $ 1,016,150
Accounts receivable, net of allowance 2011: $131,508; 2010: $38,000 374,735 156,973 - 531,708 571,266
Accounts receivable - related entities 56,824 20,256 - 77,080 801,717
Loan to LGS 5,756,319 - (5,756,319) - -
Accrued interest receivable 74,428 - (74,428) - -
Note receivable 769,172 - (769,172) - -
Office property and equipment, net - 3,180,687 - 3,180,687 3,365,088
Other assets 5,000 - - 5,000 6,828
Total assets $ 7,515,238 $ 4235282 $ (6,599,919) $ 5,150,601 $ 5,761,049
LIABILITIES

Accounts payable $ 48,459 $ 183981 $ - 8 232,440 $ 534,983
Accounts payable - related entities - - - - 292,320
Loan from IASB - 5,756,319 (5,756,319) - -
Deferred revenue 336,816 - - 336,816 317,740
Interest rate swap - 236,536 - 236,536 258,584
Accrued wages 144,000 41,847 - 185,847 340,041
Accrued vacation 42,423 21,754 - 64,177 42,062
Accrued interest - 75,757 (74,428) 1,329 5,699
Accrued property taxes - 103,332 - 103,332 103,200
$ 571,698 $ 6,419,526 $ (5,830,747) $ 1,160,477 $ 1,894,629

Accrued pension benefit liability $ 693,410 $ -3 - 3 693,410 $ 795,684

Mortgage payable:

Mortgage payable - U.S. Bank $ - $ 1,107,990 $ - 8 1,107,990 $ 1,133,520
Mortgage payable - IASB - 769,172 (769,172) - -
$ -3 1,877,162 $ (769,172) $ 1,107,990 $ 1,133,520

Total liabilities $ 1,265,108 $ 8,296,688 $ (6,599,919) $ 2,961,877 $ 3,823,833

NET ASSETS AND ACCUMULATED (DEFICIT)

Unrestricted $ 6,250,130 $ - % 281,010 $ 6,531,140 $ 6,394,129
Common stock - 281,010 (281,010) - -
Accumulated (deficit) - (4,342,416) - (4,342,416) (4,458,047)
Temporarily restricted - - - - 1,134
Total net assets and accumulated (deficit) $ 6,250,130 $ (4,061,406) $ - $ 2,188,724 $ 1,937,216

Total liabilities and net assets and accumulated (deficit) $ 7,515,238 $ 4235282 $ (6,599,919) $ 5,150,601 $ 5,761,049
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REVENUES

Memberships

Publications, forms and materials

Convention and conferences

Consulting services

Professional services

Administrative services

Online payment services

Sponsorships

Risk management and insurance program

Grants

Rental income

Net assets released from restrictions
satisfied by payments

Total revenues

EXPENSES
Salaries
Payroll taxes
Retirement benefits
Staff development
Marketing
Travel
Building operations
Equipment and computers
Depreciation and amortization
Office supplies
Cartage and postage
Telephone
Professional fees
Skills lowa expenses
Sponsorship fees
Insurance
Printing
Reference materials
Dues
Conventions and conferences
Interest
Web hosting, registration and internet
Assistance to members
Miscellaneous
Program banking fees

Total expenses
OTHER REVENUE (EXPENSE)
Interest income
Change in value of interest rate swap
Change in accrued pension liability
Gain on the sale of assets
Loss on discontinued software
Total other revenue
Change in net assets and net income (loss)
Net assets (loss) at beginning of year

Net assets (loss) at end of year

See Accompanying Independent Auditor's Report.

IOWA ASSOCIATION OF SCHOOL BOARDS

Schedule 5
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES FOR
IOWA ASSOCIATION OF SCHOOL BOARDS & SUBSIDIARY
Year Ended June 30, 2011
With Comparative Totals for 2010
Temporarily
Unrestricted Restricted
lowa Local lowa 2011 2010
Association of Government Consolidated Association of Consolidated Comparative
School Boards Services, Inc. Eliminations Totals School Boards Totals Totals
$ 1,208,584 - - 8 1,208,584 $ - 8 1,208,584 $ 1,292,248
189,504 651 - 190,155 - 190,155 223,995
507,481 - - 507,481 - 507,481 481,697
12,771 - - 12,771 - 12,771 28,920
272,033 - - 272,033 - 272,033 291,495
- 1,610,713 (208,000) 1,402,713 - 1,402,713 2,125,629
- 2,133,077 - 2,133,077 - 2,133,077 2,048,578
577,866 - (258,023) 319,843 - 319,843 578,819
526,446 - - 526,446 - 526,446 507,489
3,345,246 - - 3,345,246 - 3,345,246 3,368,090
- 377,658 (250,000) 127,658 - 127,658 118,349
1,134 - - 1,134 (1,134) - -
$ 6,641,065 4,122,099 (716,023) $ 10,047,141 $ (1,134) $ 10,046,007 $ 11,065,309
$ 1,352,518 988,798 - 8 2,341,316 $ - 8 2,341,316 $ 3,302,933
109,781 70,935 - 180,716 - 180,716 207,921
97,388 54,587 - 151,975 - 151,975 388,449
4,010 - - 4,010 - 4,010 8,647
- 12,017 - 12,017 - 12,017 10,018
154,809 10,737 - 165,546 - 165,546 209,538
262,270 231,885 (250,000) 244,155 - 244,155 305,366
- 82,071 - 82,071 - 82,071 114,730
2,555 192,036 - 194,591 - 194,591 383,468
35,482 10,893 - 46,375 - 46,375 78,529
12,377 2,953 - 15,330 - 15,330 31,787
19,622 17,242 - 36,864 - 36,864 39,950
981,507 679,919 (208,000) 1,453,426 - 1,453,426 1,711,167
2,905,491 - - 2,905,491 - 2,905,491 2,742,821
- 550,441 (258,023) 292,418 - 292,418 436,728
140,134 81,504 - 221,638 - 221,638 299,787
14,556 264 - 14,820 - 14,820 31,022
6,859 66 - 6,925 - 6,925 9,782
89,931 - - 89,931 - 89,931 89,426
318,176 1,260 - 319,436 - 319,436 294,771
- 133,669 (35,044) 98,625 - 98,625 105,640
3,399 45,641 - 49,040 - 49,040 44,088
5,040 - - 5,040 - 5,040 13,060
127,033 2,064 - 129,097 - 129,097 32,196
- 864,445 - 864,445 - 864,445 794,587
$ 6,642,938 4,033,427 (751,067) $ 9,925,298 $ - $ 9,925298 $ 11,686,411
$ 36,610 3,622 (35,044) $ 5,188 $ - 8 5188 $ 2,429
- 22,048 - 22,048 - 22,048 (51,083)
102,274 - - 102,274 - 102,274 496,775
- 1,289 - 1,289 - 1,289 -
- - - - - - (66,708)
$ 138,884 26,959 (35,044) $ 130,799 $ - $ 130,799 $ 381,413
$ 137,011 115,631 - $ 252,642 $ (1,134) $ 251,508 $ (239,689)
6,113,119 (4,458,047) 281,010 1,936,082 1,134 1,937,216 2,176,905
$ 6,250,130 (4,342,416) 281,010 $ 2,188,724 $ - $ 2,188,724 $ 1,937,216
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IOWA ASSOCIATION OF SCHOOL BOARDS

Schedule 6
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR
IOWA ASSOCIATION OF SCHOOL BOARDS & SUBSIDIARY
Year Ended June 30, 2011
With Comparative Totals for 2010
lowa Local 2011 2010
Association of Government Consolidating Comparative
School Boards Services, Inc. Eliminations Totals Totals
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in net assets and net income (loss) $ 135,877 $ 115631 $ - 8% 251,508 (239,689)
Adjustments to reconcile the change in net assets and net income
(loss) to net cash (used in) provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 2,555 192,036 - 194,591 383,468
Swap liability - (22,048) - (22,048) 51,083
Change in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in assets:
Accounts receivable 505,356 258,839 - 764,195 (428,414)
Accrued interest receivable (4,314) - (4,314) (8,628) (9,035)
Other assets 1,174 654 - 1,828 64,504
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable (631,178) 36,315 - (594,863) 212,510
Accrued property taxes - 132 - 132 (712)
Accrued interest - (56) 4314 4,258 8,798
Accrued wages (60,927) (93,267) - (154,194) 340,041
Accrued vacation 13,706 8,409 - 22,115 (5,918)
Accrued pension liability (102,274) - - (102,274) (496,775)
Deferred revenue 21,916 (2,840) - 19,076 (260,638)
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities $ (118,109) $ 493,805 $ - $ 375,696 (380,777)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds received from borrowings to LGS $ 717,512 $ - % (717,512) $ - -
Loans to LGS (828,080) - 828,080 - -
Amounts expended for computer software - - - - (4,800)
Purchase of property and equipment - (10,190) - (10,190) (40,460)
Net cash (used in) investing activities $ (110,568) $ (10,190) $ 110,568 $ (10,190) (45,260)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from borrowings from IASB $ - 8 828,080 $ (828,080) $ - -
Payments on borrowings from IASB - (717,512) 717,512 - -
Principal payments on notes payable - (25,530) - (25,530) (23,550)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities $ - 8 85,038 $ (110,568) $ (25,530) (23,550)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents $ (228,677) $ 568,653 $ - 8 339,976 (449,587)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 707,437 308,713 - 1,016,150 1,465,737
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 478,760 $ 877,366 $ - $  1356,126 1,016,150
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW
INFORMATION
Cash payments for interest $ - 8 133,725 $ (30,730) $ 102,995 105,883

See Accompanying Independent Auditor's Report.
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IOWA ASSOCIATION OF SCHOOL BOARDS

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION FOR
IOWA ASSOCIATION OF SCHOOL BOARDS & SUBSIDIARY AND
IOWA ASSOCIATION OF SCHOOL BOARDS FOUNDATION
June 30, 2011

Schedule 7

lowa
lowa Local Association of lowa Association
Association of Government School Boards  of School Boards Consolidating
ASSETS School Boards Services, Inc. Eliminations & Subsidiary Foundation Eliminations Totals

Cash and cash equivalents $ 478,760 $ 877,366 - 3 1,356,126 $ 72,327 - $ 1,428,453
Accounts receivable, net of allowance 2011: $131,508; 2010: $38,000 374,735 156,973 - 531,708 - - 531,708
Accounts receivable - related entities 56,824 20,256 - 77,080 - (21,166) 55,914
Loanto LGS 5,756,319 - (5,756,319) - - - -
Accrued interest receivable 74,428 - (74,428) - - - -
Note receivable 769,172 - (769,172) - - - -
Office property and equipment, net - 3,180,687 - 3,180,687 - - 3,180,687
Other assets 5,000 - - 5,000 - - 5,000
Total assets $ 7,515,238 $ 4,235,282 (6,599,919) $ 5,150,601 $ 72,327 (21,166) $ 5,201,762

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 48,459 $ 183,981 - $ 232,440 $ - - $ 232,440
Due to IASB - 5,756,319 (5,756,319) - 15,815 (15,815) -
Due to LGS - - - - 5,351 (5,351) -
Deferred revenue 336,816 - - 336,816 50,000 - 386,816
Interest rate swap - 236,536 - 236,536 - - 236,536
Accrued wages 144,000 41,847 - 185,847 - - 185,847
Accrued vacation 42,423 21,754 - 64,177 - - 64,177
Accrued interest - 75,757 (74,428) 1,329 - - 1,329
Accrued property taxes - 103,332 - 103,332 - - 103,332
$ 571,698 $ 6,419,526 (5,830,747) $ 1,160,477 $ 71,166 (21,166) $ 1,210,477
Accrued pension benefit liability $ 693,410 $ - - 3 693,410 $ - - 8 693,410

Mortgage payable:
Mortgage payable - U.S. Bank $ - $ 1,107,990 - 3 1,107,990 $ - - $ 1,107,990
Mortgage payable - IASB - 769,172 (769,172) - - - -
$ - $ 1,877,162 (769,172) $ 1,107,990 $ - - 8 1,107,990
Total liabilities $ 1,265,108 $ 8,296,688 (6,599,919) $ 2,961,877 $ 71,166 (21,166) $ 3,011,877
NET ASSETS AND ACCUMULATED (DEFICIT)

Unrestricted $ 6,250,130 $ - 281,010 $ 6,531,140 $ (9,133) - $ 6,522,007
Common stock - 281,010 (281,010) - - - -
Accumulated (deficit) - (4,342,416) - (4,342,416) - - (4,342,416)
Temporarily restricted - - - - 10,294 - 10,294
Total net assets and accumulated (deficit) $ 6,250,130 $ (4,061,406) - 3 2,188,724  $ 1,161 - 8 2,189,885
Total liabilities and net assets and accumulated (deficit) $ 7,515,238 $ 4,235,282 (6,599,919) $ 5,150,601 $ 72,327 (21,166) $ 5,201,762

See Accompanying Independent Auditor's Report.
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REVENUES

Memberships

Publications, forms and materials

Convention and conferences

Consulting services

Professional services

Contributions

Administrative services

Online payment services

Sponsorships

Risk management and insurance program

Grants

Rental income

Net assets released from restrictions
satisfied by payments

Total revenues

EXPENSES
Salaries
Payroll taxes
Retirement benefits
Program management
Staff development
Marketing
Travel
Building operations
Equipment and computers
Depreciation and amortization
Office supplies
Cartage and postage
Telephone
Professional fees
Skills lowa expenses
Sponsorship fees
Insurance
Printing
Reference materials
Dues
Conventions and conferences
Interest
Web hosting, registration and internet
Contributions
Assistance to members
Miscellaneous
Program banking fees

Total expenses
OTHER REVENUE
Interest income
Change in value of interest rate swap
Change in accrued pension liability
Gain on the sale of assets
Total other revenue
Change in net assets and net income
Net assets (deficit) at beginning of year

Net assets (deficit) at end of year

See Accompanying Independent Auditor's Report.

IOWA ASSOCIATION OF SCHOOL BOARDS

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES FOR
IOWA ASSOCIATION OF SCHOOL BOARDS & SUBSIDIARY AND

IOWA ASSOCIATION OF SCHOOL BOARDS FOUNDATION

Year Ended June 30, 2011

Unrestricted

Temporarily
Restricted

Schedule 8

lowa

lowa Local Association of  lowa Association lowa lowa Association
Association of Government School Boards  of School Boards Consolidating ~ Association of ~ of School Boards  Consolidating
School Boards Services, Inc. Eliminations & Subsidiary Foundation Eliminations Totals School Boards Foundation Totals
$ 1,208,584 $ - $ - $ 1208584 3 - $ - $ 1208584 $ - 3% - $ -
189,504 651 - 190,155 - - 190,155 - - -
507,481 - - 507,481 - - 507,481 - - -
12,771 - - 12,771 - (2,000) 10,771 - - -
272,033 - - 272,033 - - 272,033 - - -
- - - - 1,700 - 1,700 - - -
- 1,610,713 (208,000) 1,402,713 - (11,237) 1,391,476 - - -
- 2,133,077 - 2,133,077 - - 2,133,077 - - -
577,866 - (258,023) 319,843 - - 319,843 - - -
526,446 - - 526,446 - - 526,446 - - -
3,345,246 - - 3,345,246 50,000 - 3,395,246 - - -
- 377,658 (250,000) 127,658 - - 127,658 - - -
1,134 - - 1,134 7,030 - 8,164 (1,134) (7,030) (8,164)
$ 6,641,065 $ 412209 $ (716,023) $ 10,047,141 $ 58,730 $ (13,237) $ 10,092,634 $ (1,134) $ (7,030) $ (8,164)
$ 1,352,518 $ 988,798 $ - $ 2341316 % - $ - $ 2341316 % - 3% - $ -
109,781 70,935 - 180,716 - - 180,716 - - -
97,388 54,587 - 151,975 - - 151,975 - - -
- - - - 13,237 (13,237) - - - -
4,010 - - 4,010 - - 4,010 - - -
- 12,017 - 12,017 - - 12,017 - - -
154,809 10,737 - 165,546 147 - 165,693 - - -
262,270 231,885 (250,000) 244,155 - - 244,155 - - -
- 82,071 - 82,071 - - 82,071 - - -
2,555 192,036 - 194,591 - - 194,591 - - -
35,482 10,893 - 46,375 1,298 - 47,673 - - -
12,377 2,953 - 15,330 142 - 15,472 - - -
19,622 17,242 - 36,864 37 - 36,901 - - -
981,507 679,919 (208,000) 1,453,426 3,900 - 1,457,326 - - -
2,905,491 - - 2,905,491 - - 2,905,491 - - -
- 550,441 (258,023) 292,418 - - 292,418 - - -
140,134 81,504 - 221,638 1,710 - 223,348 - - -
14,556 264 - 14,820 212 - 15,032 - - -
6,859 66 - 6,925 - - 6,925 - - -
89,931 - - 89,931 10 - 89,941 - - -
318,176 1,260 - 319,436 - - 319,436 - - -
- 133,669 (35,044) 98,625 - - 98,625 - - -
3,399 45,641 - 49,040 - - 49,040 - - -
- - - - 44,115 - 44,115 - - -
5,040 - - 5,040 - - 5,040 - - -
127,033 2,064 - 129,097 - - 129,097 - - -
- 864,445 - 864,445 - - 864,445 - - -
$ 6,642,938 $ 4033427 $ (751,067) $ 9,925298 $ 64,808 $ (13,237) $ 9,976,869 $ - $ - $ -
$ 36,610 $ 3622 % (35,044) $ 51838 $ 62 $ -3 5250 $ - 8 - 3 -
- 22,048 - 22,048 - - 22,048 - - -
102,274 - - 102,274 - - 102,274 - - -
- 1,289 - 1,289 - - 1,289 - - -
$ 138,884 $ 26,959 $ (35044) $ 130,799 $ 62 $ - 8 130,861 $ - 8 - 3 -
$ 137,011  $ 115631 $ - 8 252,642 $ (6,016) $ - 8 246,626 $ (1,134) $ (7,030) $ (8,164)
6,113,119 (4,458,047) 281,010 1,936,082 (3,117) - 1,932,965 1,134 17,324 18,458
$ 6,250,130 $ (4,342,416) $ 281,010 $ 2,188,724 $ (9,133) $ - $ 2179591 % - $ 10294 $ 10,294
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IOWA ASSOCIATION OF SCHOOL BOARDS

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR
IOWA ASSOCIATION OF SCHOOL BOARDS & SUBSIDIARY AND
IOWA ASSOCIATION OF SCHOOL BOARDS FOUNDATION
Year Ended June 30, 2011

Schedule 9

lowa
lowa Local Association of lowa Association
Association of Government School Boards of School Boards Consolidating
School Boards Services, Inc. Eliminations & Subsidiary Foundation Eliminations Totals
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in net assets and net income $ 135877 $ 115,631 - $ 251,508 $ (13,046) $ -3 238,462
Adjustments to reconcile the change in net assets and net income
to net cash (used in) provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 2,555 192,036 - 194,591 - - 194,591
Swap liability - (22,048) - (22,048) - - (22,048)
Change in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in assets:
Accounts receivable 505,356 258,839 - 764,195 - (102,680) 661,515
Pledges receivable - - - - 5,030 - 5,030
Accrued interest receivable (4,314) - (4,314) (8,628) - - (8,628)
Other assets 1,174 654 - 1,828 - - 1,828
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Due to IASB - - - - (2,959) 98,101 95,142
Due to LGS - - - - (5,774) 4,579 (1,195)
Accounts payable (631,178) 36,315 - (594,863) (4,733) - (599,596)
Accrued property taxes - 132 - 132 - - 132
Accrued interest - (56) 4,314 4,258 - - 4,258
Accrued wages (60,927) (93,267) - (154,194) - - (154,194)
Accrued vacation 13,706 8,409 - 22,115 - - 22,115
Accrued pension liability (102,274) - - (102,274) - - (102,274)
Deferred revenue 21,916 (2,840) - 19,076 50,000 - 69,076
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities $ (118,109) $ 493,805 - $ 375,696 $ 28,518 $ - 3 404,214
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds received from borrowings to LGS $ 717512  $ - (717,512) $ - % -3 - 8 -
Loans to LGS (828,080) - 828,080 - - - -
Purchase of property and equipment - (10,190) - (10,190) - - (10,190)
Net cash (used in) investing activities $ (110,568) $ (10,190) 110,568 $ (10,190) $ - $ - $ (10,190)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from borrowings from IASB $ - $ 828,080 (828,080) $ - $ -3 - 8 -
Payments on borrowings from IASB - (717,512) 717,512 - - - -
Principal payments on notes payable - (25,530) - (25,530) - - (25,530)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities $ - 3 85,038 (110,568) $ (25,530) $ - $ - 3 (25,530)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents $ (228,677) $ 568,653 - $ 339976 $ 28518 $ -3 368,494
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 707,437 308,713 - 1,016,150 43,809 - 1,059,959
Cash and cash equivalents at end of yeat $ 478,760 $ 877,366 - $ 1,356,126 $ 72327 $ - $ 1,428,453
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW
INFORMATION
Cash payments for interest $ - $ 133,725 (30,730) $ 102,995 $ - $ - $ 102,995

See Accompanying Independent Auditor's Report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON THE
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

To the Board of Directors
lowa Association of School Boards
Des Moines, lowa

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Jowa Association of School Boards (the
Association) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2011. We have issued our report thereon dated April 6,
2012. The financial statements are the responsibility of the Association’s management. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audit.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
The schedule of expenditures of federal awards 1s presented for purposes of additional analysis as
required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments,
and Non-Profit Organizations, and is not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements
and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material
respects, in relation to the consolidated financial statements taken as a whole.

@/WM Fdje, Pc.

West Des Moines, Iowa
April 6,2012
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IOWA ASSOCIATION OF SCHOOL BOARDS

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
Year Ended June 30, 2011

Federal Federal
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program or Cluster Title CFDA Number Expenditures
Direct:
U.S. Department of Education:
Fund for the improvement of education-Skills lowa 84.215K $ 3,345,246
Total U.S. Department of Education $ 3,345,246

Note 1 - Basis of Presentation - The schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity

of the lowa Association of School Boards and is presented on the accrual basis of accounting. The information on this
schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-profit Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from

the amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements.

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reporting
on the accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in
OMB Circular A-122, Cost Principles for Non-profit Organziation , wherein certain types of expenditures

are not allowed or are limited as to reimbursement.
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON
AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

The Board of Directors
Towa Association of School Boards
Des Moines, Iowa

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of the lowa Association of School Boards (the
Association) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2011, and have issued our report thereon dated April 6,
2012. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Association’s internal control over financial
reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Association’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Association’s internal control over financial reporting.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the
preceding paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial
reporting that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses and therefore, there can be no
assurance that all deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses have been identified.
However, as described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, we identified
certain deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be significant
deficiencies as well as material weaknesses.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important
enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. We consider the deficiencies described in the accompanying schedule of findings and

questioned costs as II-A-2011 through II-E-2011 to be significant deficiencies as well as material
weaknesses.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Association’s financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

We noted certain matters that we reported to management of the Association in a separate letter dated
April 6, 2012.

The Association’s response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs. We did not audit the Association’s response and, accordingly,
we express no opinion on it.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Board of Directors, others

within the organization, and federal awarding agencics and pass-through entities, and is not intended to be
and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

8@0&‘%/& P e

West Des Moines, lowa
April 6,2012



Telford A. Lodden, CPA, CFP®, CVA, Shareholder

Bruce W. Hartley, CPA, Shareholder

BrOOkS LOdden P. C . John E. Lamale, CPA, Shareholder

certified public accountants Brent L. Alexander, CPA, Shareholder

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
THAT COULD HAVE A DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH
MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE
IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

To the Board of Directors
Towa Association of School Boards
Des Moines, Iowa

Compliance

We have audited the Iowa Association of School Board’s (the Association) compliance with the types of
compliance requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have
a direct and material effect on the Association’s major federal program for the year ended June 30, 2011.
The Association’s major federal program is identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to its major federal program is the responsibility of the

Association’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Association’s compliance
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect
on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the
Association’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our

opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Association’s compliance with those
requirements.

In our opinion, the Association complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above
that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal program for the year ended June 30, 2011.
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Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the Association is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to federal
programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Association’s internal control over
compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program
to determine the auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test
and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly,
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Association’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal
control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. A
material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in
internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance
with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might
be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses and therefore, there can be no assurance that all
deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses have been identified. We did not identify
any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as
defined above.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Board of Directors, others

within the Association, and federal awarding and pass-through entities and is not intended to be used and
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

(S ks bl , P

West Des Moines, lowa
April 6, 2012



IOWA ASSOCIATION OF SCHOOL BOARDS

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

PART I: SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS

1. The auditor’s report expresses a unqualified opinion on the consolidated financial statements of the
lowa Association of School Boards.

2. Significant deficiencies and material weaknesses relating to the audit of the financial statements are
reported in the schedule of findings and questioned costs.

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of the lowa Association of
School Boards were disclosed during the audit.

4. Significant deficiencies and material weaknesses relating to the audit of the major federal award
programs are reported in the schedule of findings and questioned costs.

5. The auditor’s report on compliance for U.S. Department of Education Fund for Improvement of
Education expresses a qualified opinion.

6. Audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with Section 510(a) of OMB Circular
A-133 are reported in this Schedule.

7. The program tested as a major program was the U.S. Department of Education Fund for the
Improvement of Education, CFDA# 84.215K.

8. The threshold for distinguishing between Type A and B programs was $300,000.

9. lowa Association of School Boards did not qualify as a low-risk auditee and according to the U.S.
Department of Education was put on high-risk, which resulted in the lowa Association of School
Boards being required to submit copies of all documentation to the U.S. Department of Education
before any draws can be made on grants.



IOWA ASSOCIATION OF SCHOOL BOARDS

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

PART Il: Findings Related to the Financial Statements

11-A-2011: Financial Accounting and Reporting:

An Organization’s internal control over financial reporting contemplates that management and
accounting staff has the skills and competencies to prevent, detect, and correct misstatements in
financial statements, including applicable disclosures, prepared in accordance with United States
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP). During the audit, multiple adjusting and
reclassifying entries were needed in order for the financial statements to properly reflect the activity
of the Organization and be in conformity with GAAP. The accounting staff and management’s lack
of expertise and familiarity with GAAP, including disclosures, is considered a material weakness in
the Organization’s internal controls over financial reporting. An auditor can prepare the
Organization’s financial statements and related disclosures, but cannot be considered part of the
internal control in place to ensure the statements are presented in accordance with GAAP, including
disclosures.

Recommendation: Management of the organization needs to review the responsibilities and skill
sets of the individuals within the accounting department to ensure the organization is able to prepare
accurate financial information for the Board.

Response: The Association is in the process of hiring a controller in addition to the existing three
accounting staff. Once the controller starts working then the review of responsibilities will occur.

11-B-2011: Critical Accounting Routines & Financial Statements:

Critical accounting routines are tasks which are to be completed on a regular basis to ensure the
timeliness and accuracy of the flow of information to management and to provide the Board
sufficient timely and accurate information in order to fulfill their oversight responsibilities. During
the audit, it became apparent that certain accounts were not being reconciled on a timely basis;
subsidiary accounts (i.e. accounts receivable and accounts payable) did not reconcile or agree to the
trial balance, outstanding check listings were not being generated and included with bank
reconciliations, and certain other account reconciliations had not been performed. Financial
statements have been provided to the Board during the year; however, in order to provide financial
statements; all adjusting entries and reconciliations were not performed to ensure accurate and
complete financial statements were presented.

Recommendation: The Board should ensure formal policies are incorporated to require
management to timely reconcile accounts, establish proper review procedures, and provide
complete and accurate financial statements on a monthly basis to the Board for review.

Response: The Audit and Finance Committee will review and make necessary policy changes for
consideration by the Board. The addition of a controller should facilitate establishing the necesay
schedule of activities to meet timelines.



IOWA ASSOCIATION OF SCHOOL BOARDS

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

PART Il: Findings Related to the Financial Statements (Continued)

11-C-2011: Critical Accounting Routines — PaySchools:

Critical accounting routines are tasks which are to be completed on a regular basis to ensure the timeliness
and accuracy of the flow of information to management and to provide the Board sufficient timely and
accurate information in order to fulfill their oversight responsibilities. Effective July 1, 2010, the
organization began using PayPal as the credit card processing agent. During the audit, it became apparent
that the PaySchools accounts were not being fully reconciled. Cash balances in the bank were reconciled
to record transfers, interest, and fees; however, the general ledger account indicating amounts due to LGS
or amounts owed to participating schools was not reconciled to agree with actual month-end activity.
Transactions owed to schools were processed and submitted to participating schools; however, amounts
submitted to PaySchools via PayPal were not reconciled to agree to amounts transferred to the LGS bank
account. The PaySchools accounts were not reconciled to ensure all amounts transferred to participating
schools by LGS had in fact been received by LGS from PayPal.

Recommendation: The Board should ensure formal policies are incorporated to require management to
timely reconcile PaySchools accounts and ensure proper amounts have been received by LGS. In the
event, LGS does not receive the proper funds, procedures should be implemented to request funds be
returned to LGS from the participating schools. The proper reconciliation of PaySchools will also
facilitate accurate financial statements for the Board to review.

Response: With the addition of the controller position, PaySchools staff will be involved in the review of
responsibilities to develop process checklists and timelines. The Audit and Finance Committee will
review and make necessary policy suggestions to the By-Laws and Policy Committee for consideration by
the Board.

11-D-2011: Segregation of Duties and Supervision & Review- Financial Statements:

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls, including monitoring
ongoing activities; for the selection and application of accounting principles; and for the fair presentation
in the financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.
Management is also responsible for the design and implementation of programs and controls to prevent
and detect fraud affecting the Organization involving (a) management, (b) employees who have
significant roles in internal control, and (c) others where the fraud could have a material effect on the
financial statements. The Accounting Manager had access to all accounting software and calculated and
posted the majority of transactions of the Organization. During the year ended June 30, 2011, until the
end of October 2011, the duties performed (i.e., accounts reconciliations, journal entries, bank
reconciliations, and subsidiary ledgers) by the accounting personnel had not been reviewed by an
independent individual.

In addition, payroll records were being initialed as reviewed and approved for the majority of the year;
however a proper review had not taken place. In September 2010, the Compensation Committee was
notified by the 401(k) Plan Administrator that the top-tier allocation group for the Association’s plan
would need to have the discretionary match adjusted to be in compliance with the plan. This should have
resulted in a 2% decrease in the employer discretionary contributions for the top-tier; however, the change
was not made in the payroll system resulting in the top-tier individuals receiving an increased
discretionary contribution until the 401(k) employer contributions were suspended on September 1, 2011.
These excess contributions will be forfeited by these individuals and returned to IASB’s 401(Kk) Plan.
Also, there was one individual in the top-tier who received an employer discretionary contribution at the
lowest tier level. The organization will be correcting this individual’s employer contributions, including a
lost earnings calculation for a total contribution of $3,080.58.
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IOWA ASSOCIATION OF SCHOOL BOARDS

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

PART Il: Findings Related to the Financial Statements (Continued)

11-D-2011: Segregation of Duties and Supervision & Review — Financial Statements: (Continued)

Recommendation: The Board should require management to review and document current
internal controls, establish a process for an ongoing review of these controls, and make changes to
adequately segregate the duties of the accounting staff. If the duties cannot be segregated,
procedures should be established to ensure the duties are reviewed by an independent individual.
This review should be performed monthly and documented on all financial accounting records by
formally noting the individual who performed the review.

Recommendation: Management should implement procedures to adequately review the payroll
reports and ensure proper amounts are calculated and submitted to the 401(k) Plan. Management
should ensure proper amounts are calculated and provided to the 401(k) Plan Administrator in order
to reclassify the contributions to forfeitures by the top-tier allocation group. Management should
ensure proper contributions are deposited into the 401(k) Plan for the individual which received the
incorrect employer discretionary contribution.

Response: Once the controller is working, then payroll processes and duties will be reviewed and
schedules, operating procedures and checklists developed.

11-E-2011: Supervision & Review- Federal Grants:

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls, including monitoring
ongoing activities; for the selection and application of accounting principles; and for the fair
presentation in the financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles. Management is also responsible for the design and implementation of programs and
controls to prevent and detect fraud affecting the Organization involving (a) management, (b)
employees who have significant roles in internal control, and (c) others where the fraud could have
a material effect on the financial statements. Management is responsible for the proper oversight
and accounting for federal grant draws and reimbursements. During the audit, it was noted that
timely follow up and accounting reconciliation procedures regarding the Skills lowa grant were not
functioning effectively. The organization setup a spreadsheet to track the period covered by the
draw, the month submitted, amount requested, amount received by USDE and the date received.
The accounting department did not adjust the accounts receivable and revenue accounts to reflect
the amounts denied by USDE for reimbursement. USDE also declined cell phone reimbursements
for the Skills lowa trainers and communicated this to the organization during the early draws;
however, the organization continued to submit the amounts for reimbursement in subsequent draws,
as well as the indirect rate on these expenses. As these amounts were denied by USDE, the
organization did not adjust the accounts receivable and revenue to properly reflect the activity. An
audit adjustment was posted to properly reflect the activity of the Skills lowa grant reimbursements.

Recommendation: Management should implement procedures to adequately review grant draw
requests and reimbursements received to ensure proper amounts are reflected in the financial
statements of the organization. Management should ensure procedures are in place to follow up
with USDE regarding outstanding grant reimbursements and the reason for denials in a timely
fashion.
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IOWA ASSOCIATION OF SCHOOL BOARDS

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

PART 1l: Findings Related to the Financial Statements (Continued)

11-E-2011: Supervision & Review- Federal Grants: (Continued)

Response: The Skills lowa grant has ended. Prior to acceptance of any future grants, there needs
to be training and staff dedicated to grant accounting rules and regulations.

PART Ill: Findings and Questioned Costs for Federal Awards

U.S. Department of Education

None
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IOWA ASSOCIATION OF SCHOOL BOARDS

CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN FOR FEDERAL AUDIT FINDINGS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Contact Person Anticipated
Comment Title Date of
Number Comment Title Corrective Action Plan Phone Number Completion
11-A-2011 Financial Accounting & Our corrective action plan Galen Howsare, Chief Fiscal Year 2012
Reporting was documented in our Financial Officer of the lowa
response to the auditor's Association of Schools Boards
comment. See the Schedule  (515) 288-1991
of Findings and Questioned
Costs.
11-B-2011 Critical Accounting Routines & Our corrective action plan Galen Howsare, Chief Fiscal Year 2012
Financial Statements was documented in our Financial Officer of the lowa
response to the auditor's Association of Schools Boards
comment. See the Schedule  (515) 288-1991
of Findings and Questioned
Costs.
11-C-2011 Criticial Accounting Routines- Our corrective action plan Galen Howsare, Chief Fiscal Year 2012
PaySchools was documented in our Financial Officer of the lowa
response to the auditor's Association of Schools Boards
comment. See the Schedule  (515) 288-1991
of Findings and Questioned
Costs.
11-D-2011 Segregation of Duties and Our corrective action plan Galen Howsare, Chief Fiscal Year 2012
Supervision & Review - was documented in our Financial Officer of the lowa
Financial Statements response to the auditor's Association of Schools Boards
comment. See the Schedule  (515) 288-1991
of Findings and Questioned
Costs.
11-E-2011 Supervision & Review - Our corrective action plan Galen Howsare, Chief Fiscal Year 2012

Federal Grants

was documented in our
response to the auditor's
comment. See the Schedule
of Findings and Questioned
Costs.
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IOWA ASSOCIATION OF SCHOOL BOARDS

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

PART IV: Findings Related to the Financial Statements

IASB-2010-01A: Compensation:

Due to recent events regarding large increases in executive salaries, the Board should review and
formally approve all salaries on behalf of the organization. Prior to July 1, 2009, the Board
annually performed a review of the Executive Director and set the Executive Director’s salary for
the upcoming year using the National School Boards Association (NSBA) salary survey as a guide.
The Board then approved the remaining salaries of the organization as a budget line item. Per
organizational policy, the Executive Director reviewed individual salaries and made adjustments as
deemed necessary.

On September 17, 2009, Margaret Buckton, Lisa Bartusek, and Jen Albers, three long-term
employees, who had each worked for the organization for over 10 years, were terminated due to
what Maxine Kilcrease (Executive Director) cited as budget cuts. Mrs. Kilcrease stated in a Des
Moines Register article “School board association lays off 3 officials, cites budget trouble,” dated
October 14, 2009, *“The three jobs cut reflected cost-saving efforts, not the women’s work. Their
departures save up to $400,000, she said.” However, on September 18, 2009, the day after Mrs.
Albers was terminated; Randy Lagerblade was hired as a consultant at a rate of $100/hour to replace
Mrs. Albers and remained a consultant until October 15, 2009. Mr. Lagerblade became a
permanent employee on October 16, 2009. Mr. Lagerblade performed 170.34 hours of service for a
total amount paid of $17,034. If Mrs. Albers had been retained as an employee through this time,
gross salary paid, including benefits and taxes, would have been approximately $9,450. The use of
a consultant cost the organization an additional $7,584, which substantially increased the cost of
providing these services during this time period. Mr. Lagerblade’s annualized salary of $95,560
was also approximately $14,560 more than what was paid to Mrs. Albers. On an annualized basis,
this actually would have cost the organization an additional $104,640.

All three of these individuals were offered a severance package; however, only Lisa Bartusek
accepted the severance package. Total amount paid to Lisa Bartusek for the severance agreement
was $37,641. On October 26, 2009, Mrs. Kilcrease offered Connie Maxson the position of Director
of Member Relations based on 75% of full-time employment for 195 days per year with a daily rate
of $550. Total annual salary would equate to $107,250. The equivalent pay for a full-time position
using this pay rate would be $143,000. The position of Director of Member Relations was a
position similar to that held by Mrs. Bartusek. Mrs. Bartusek’s annual salary was $113,091 for a
full-time position. Factoring the annualized salary amount of $107,250 and the severance paid to
Mrs. Bartusek of $37,641, on an annualized basis, this actually would have cost the organization an
additional $144,891.

Margaret Buckton’s annual salary was $138,201. Once Mrs. Buckton was terminated, some of her
duties were absorbed by Mary Gannon, an attorney for the organization. In the Des Moines Register
article dated October 14, 2009, Mrs. Kilcrease stated, “The women’s duties will be absorbed by
other employees.” There was no mention about other employees receiving raises to perform these
additional services. Effective January 15, 2010, Mary Gannon’s salary increased from $96,704 to
$125,000, for an increase of $28,296. The net effect of this termination saved the organization
$109,905.
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IOWA ASSOCIATION OF SCHOOL BOARDS

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

PART 1V: Findings Related to the Financial Statements (Continued)

IASB-2010-01A: Compensation: (Continued)

On September 30, 2009, Maxine Kilcrease’s salary was changed from an annualized amount of
$210,000 to $367,157, and applied retroactively to July 1, 2009. Mary Delagardelle’s salary was
changed from an annualized amount of $126,464 to $165,000 on December 15, 2009, and applied
retroactively to July 1, 2009; LeGrande Smith’s salary was changed from an annualized amount of
$144,200 to $165,000, and applied retroactively to July 1, 2009. In addition, Larry Sigel’s contract
of $100,000 per year to provide school finance services was terminated. Jackie Black was hired on
December 15, 2009 to provide school finance services to the school districts at an annualized salary
of $125,000, plus benefits. The following table illustrates on an annualized basis the net effect of
the termination of certain employees versus the increase in salaries and new hires for individuals
replacing the terminated employees/contractors covering the period from July 1, 2009 to June 30,

2010:
(Decrease) Increase Difference
Jen Albers $ (81,000) $ - $ (81,000)
Margaret Buckton (138,201) - (138,201)
Lisa Bartusek (113,091) - (113,091)
Larry Sigel’s Contract (100,000) - (100,000)
Maxine Kilcrease - 157,157 157,157
Mary Delagardelle - 38,536 38,536
LeGrande Smith - 20,800 20,800
Mary Gannon - 28,296 28,296
Randy Lagerblade - 95,560 95,560
Connie Maxson - 107,250 107,250
Jackie Black - 125,000 125,000
Lisa Bartusek’s Severance - 37,641 37,641
Estimated Benefits at 40% (132,917) 244.096 111,179
Net effect of salary changes $(565,209) $854,336 289,127

Based upon the above table, the combined effect of the termination of Jen Albers, Margaret
Buckton, Lisa Bartusek and Larry Sigel’s contract, the changes made to other employee’s salaries
and the additional employees hired, increased the annualized cost to the organization by
approximately $289,127. Mrs. Kilcrease claimed to have saved the Organization $400,000 in an
article in the Des Moines Register and in comments to the Board. The above table only factors in
similar positions and increases in executive salaries. It does not factor into consideration other
employees who were terminated or left the organization since July 1, 2009.

During our review of compensation for the year ended June 30, 2010, we noted that the Human
Resource Director retired on June 30, 2010 and received a severance payment of $12,854.52 on July
15, 2010. In addition, a contribution was made in the amount of $899.82 to his 401(k) account. No
agreement was located in the employee’s personnel file, nor could any documentation be found that
the board approved the payment.
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SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS (Continued)
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PART 1V: Findings Related to the Financial Statements (Continued)

IASB-2010-01A: Compensation: (Continued)

Recommendation: The Board should establish formal policies to ensure that the organization
complies with the rebuttal presumption requirement of the IRS on highly compensated individuals.
The Board should also create a compensation committee comprised of management and certain
Board members to review the reasonableness of the salaries of all staff, including independent
contractors, of the organization. During the review of the salaries, the committee should take into
consideration the NSBA salary survey in addition to other local salary data to determine if the
salaries/contracts of employees/contractors are reasonable. This review should be formally
documented in the minutes and noted in each employee/contractor file. The committee should then
compile a listing of the employees and independent contractors and the salary amounts determined
by the committee to be deemed reasonable and submit this list for review and approval by the entire
Board. The Board should designate a Board member to contact the payroll service provider to make
any necessary changes. It should also be communicated to the payroll provider that no changes to
payroll can occur without the designated Board member’s signature for approval.

The Board should establish a process in which any employee leaving the Organization, whether
voluntarily or forced, has an exit interview with a designated committee of Board members, separate
from the compensation committee. An exit interview should be performed with the employee to
determine if there are any issues or concerns within the organization that need to be addressed by the
Board.

The Board should establish a formal severance policy, approve all severance payments, and
properly document these payments in the board minutes.

Current Status: Ms. Kilcrease is no longer with the organization. Individuals receiving increases
were returned to original salary rates and subsequent to the year ended June 30, 2011, all
organization employee salaries above $45,000 have been reduced by 6 - 20%.

IASB-2010-02A: Maxine Kilcrease’s Compensation:

Maxine Kilcrease began as IASB Executive Director on July 1, 2009 with a base salary of $210,000
(%$8,750 per pay period) per her intended employment agreement and the 2010 fiscal year board
approved budget. During the initial contract negotiations, Mrs. Albers and Mr. Smith had several
conversations with Mrs. Kilcrease regarding her salary and benefits and all parties agreed the salary
amount to be $210,000. Mrs. Albers correctly communicated to the payroll service provider a per
pay period amount of $8,750 for Mrs. Kilcrease’s salary. On July 23, 2009, Brooks Lodden, P.C.
staff met with Mrs. Kilcrease and Mr. Schick and specifically discussed the IRS requirements
regarding excessive compensation, including the possibility of IRS scrutiny, as well as the potential
for negative public perception, in addition to the monetary cost that could be associated with
dealing with any issues with the IRS and the public. At this time, we also made Mrs. Kilcrease
aware that her salary would be disclosed on the 2009 Form 990 informational tax return filed with
the IRS. Mrs. Kilcrease stated that was fine because her salary at AEA 11 was public information
and that she was “actually underpaid”. The correct salary amount was paid to Mrs. Kilcrease for
every pay period from July 1, 2009 through September 15, 2009. On September 17, 2009, Mrs.
Kilcrease terminated Mrs. Albers, Director of Finance, citing budget cuts.
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PART 1V: Findings Related to the Financial Statements (Continued)

IASB-2010-02A: Maxine Kilcrease’s Compensation: (Continued)

On September 23, 2009, Mr. Smith sent an e-mail to Mrs. Kilcrease, Mr. Schick, Mrs. Delagardelle
stating, “Yesterday | told the EC (Executive Council) | would provide the IRS requirements for a
tax-exempt organization to establish a presumption of reasonableness of compensation paid under
compensation arrangements. Attached is a 1-page memo outlining the IRS requirements for
establishing the presumption.” On September 25, 2009, an e-mail was sent to Kevin Schick from
Randy Lagerblade questioning what amounts should be grossed up for Mrs. Kilcrease’s salary. Mr.
Schick responded to Mr. Lagerblade and copied Mrs. Kilcrease and Jack Hill on the e-mail and
directed Mr. Lagerblade to gross up for all deductions. Based upon Mr. Schick’s direction, Mr.
Lagerblade communicated the change to the payroll service provider. On the September 30, 2009
payroll date, Mrs. Kilcrease’s annualized salary was increased from $210,000 to $367,157, in order
to gross up her salary for all benefits and withholdings including all taxes so that the net check
deposited into her bank account was $8,750. The salary increase was applied retroactively to July
1, 2009, which resulted in an additional gross amount paid to Mrs. Kilcrease of $32,741 for the
period July 1, 2009 to September 15, 2009 on September 30, 2009. Based upon subsequent
discussions with Mrs. Albers, she stated that Mrs. Kilcrease never contacted her regarding any
discrepancy in her pay.

On October 12, 2009, Brooks Lodden, P.C. staff met with Mrs. Kilcrease to inquire of fraud and
any other concerns that Mrs. Kilcrease might have regarding the organization and the financial
statements. Mrs. Kilcrease did not mention any issues regarding her salary to Brooks Lodden, P.C.
On December 5, 2009, Mrs. Kilcrease sent an e-mail to Mr. Lagerblade requesting the amount of
money owed to the organization from her due to incorrect paychecks. On January 5, 2010, Mrs.
Kilcrease wrote a memo to Mr. Schick, Mr. Lagerblade, and Mr. Smith stating, “My interpretation
of my compensation is not that everything should be grossed up. My interpretation is that the
association would be paying for flex cost, administrative fees, and all Social Security costs and
related costs even though Jen’s document does clearly say ““Payroll Taxes.” Thus I believe that my
compensation has been too much. | have set aside the money which | believe is overpayment and
stand